
 

 

 

 

 

 

October 14, 2021 

 
To the Board of Directors 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
Beaumont, California 
 
We have audited the financial statements of San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
(Agency) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and have issued our report 
thereon dated October14, 2021. Professional standards require that we advise you of 
the following matters relating to our audit. 
 
Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 
 
As communicated in our engagement letter dated February 4, 2021, our 
responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to form and express 
opinions about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by 
management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management 
of your respective responsibilities. 
 
Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform 
our audit to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial 
statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a 
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we 
considered the internal control of the Agency solely for the purpose of determining 
our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal 
control. 
 
We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit 
that are, in our professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing 
the financial reporting process. However, we are not required to design procedures 
for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you.  
 
We have provided our report on internal control over financial reporting and on 
compliance and other matters date September 28, 2021 along with the Agency's 
financial statements. 
 
Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 
 
We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously 
communicated to you. 
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To the Board of Directors 
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Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, and our network firms have complied with all 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. 

Our firm has identified the self-review of nonattest services as a threat to independence. To eliminate this threat, 
the firm requires review by an independent partner, and acceptance of the report by management. 

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the 
significant accounting policies adopted by the Agency is included in Note 1 to the financial statements. There 
have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant accounting policies or their 
application during 2021. No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional 
standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the 
effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. 

Significant Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past 
and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting 
them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments. 

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are. 
 Management’s estimate of the amortization of state water rights is based on actual and estimated water

deliveries, transportation charge, Delta water charge, and capital cost component. We evaluated the key
factors and assumptions used to develop the amortization of state water rights in determining that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

 The net pension liability and related deferred inflows and outflows of resources are based on amounts
determined by an actuarial valuation. Actuarial computations are based on a number of assumptions,
such as the rate of return on investments, rate of inflation, and life expectancy.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates and determined that they are 
reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole and in relation to the applicable opinion 
units. 

Financial Statement Disclosures 

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of their 
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the Agency’s financial 
statements relate to:  

 The disclosure of state water project in Note 3 to the financial statements. The disclosure presents a
material commitment of future charges for capital and minimum operations, maintenance, and
replacement costs related to the state water project.
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Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the audit. 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely 
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them to 
the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of 
uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or 
disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole and each applicable opinion unit. Management has corrected 
all identified misstatements. 

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected misstatements that 
were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. We did not identify 
misstatements as a result of our audit procedures.   

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether 
or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, which could be 
significant to the Agency’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such disagreements arose during the 
course of the audit. 

Representations Requested from Management 

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in a letter dated 
October 14, 2021. 

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other accountants 
regarding auditing and accounting matters. 

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues 

In the normal course of our professional association with the Agency, we generally discuss a variety of matters, 
including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, operating and regulatory conditions 
affecting the entity, and operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None 
of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the Agency’s auditors. 

Other Matters 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of San 
Gorgonio Pass Water Agency and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT  
 
 
Board of Directors 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency  
Beaumont, California 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency (Agency), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 
and 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Agency's basic financial statements as listed in the table of con-
tents.  
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Agency’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presen-
tation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material mis-
statement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based 
on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, and State Controller's Minimum Au-
dit Requirements for California Special Districts. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of ma-
terial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control rele-
vant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appro-
priate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the finan-
cial position of the Agency as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in financial position and its 
cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America.  
 
Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis, and information related to the pension and other postemployment benefits plan 
on pages 3-11 and 51-53, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Ac-
counting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing stand-
ards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with man-
agement's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information  

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collec-
tively comprise the Agency's basic financial statements. The organizational information and schedule of 
Board of Directors and insurance coverage on pages 54-55 are presented for purposes of additional 
information and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The organizational information 
and schedule of Board of Directors and insurance coverage are the responsibility of management and 
have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements 
and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 14, 
2021, on our consideration of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other mat-
ters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
Agency’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
 
Riverside, California 
October 14, 2021 
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The Agency 
 
The San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency is one of 29 local government organizations, called State Water 
Contractors, who have contracted with the State of California to import water to their local service areas 
using the State Water Project.  The Agency was created by the Legislature of the State of California 
under Senate Bill 8, Chapter 40, which was signed into law by Governor Edmund “Pat” Brown on April 
19, 1961.  The purpose for creating this public agency by special law was for the “planning, conservation, 
development, distribution, control and use of an adequate water supply for the public good and for the 
protection of life and property therein.”  As part of the act, the Agency was given taxing authority similar 
to the taxing power of other local governments. 
 
The Agency has entered into a contract with the State of California Department of Water Resources to 
receive an annual allotment of 17,300 acre-feet from the State Water Project.  However, water did not 
get delivered to the region, which extends from Calimesa through the San Gorgonio Pass area to Caba-
zon, until the completion of the East Branch Extension Phase 1 in 2003.  In 2018, the Department of 
Water Resources completed the construction of Phase 2, which increased the capacity of the facilities to 
deliver water by adding an additional pipeline, an additional reservoir, additional pumps and expanding 
an existing reservoir. 
 
In 2020, the Agency completed construction and started using its new recharge site on the corner of 
Beaumont Avenue and Brookside in Beaumont, named the San Gorgonio Recharge Facility at Brookside.  
This facility was built to be able to recharge water, most often during wet years, but also as necessity 
arises because of operational constraints. 
 
The Basic Financial Statements 
 
The San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency is a special purpose government organization (Special District) 
engaged only in activities that support themselves through user fees and tax levies.  Accordingly, the 
accompanying financial statements are presented in the format prescribed for proprietary funds by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 
 
These financial statements consist of three interrelated statements designed to provide the reader with 
relevant, understandable data about the Agency’s financial condition and operating results.  They are the 
Statement of Net Position; the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position; and the 
Statement of Cash Flows. 
 
The Statement of Net Position presents the Agency’s assets and liabilities and the difference, or net, 
between what is owned and what is owed as of the last day of the Agency’s fiscal year.  The Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position describes the financial results of the Agency’s 
operations for the years reported.  The results, or changes in net assets, are the increases or decreases 
in the bottom line of the Statement of Net Position. 
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The Statement of Cash Flows conveys to financial statement readers how the Agency managed cash 
resources during the year.  This statement converts the Change in Net Position presented on the State-
ment of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position into actual cash provided by or used for 
operations.  The Statement of Cash Flows also details how the Agency obtains cash through financing 
and investing activities and, conversely, how cash is spent for these purposes. 
 
Summary Financial Information and Analysis 
 
The Agency exists for two major purposes:  one is to deliver water to retail customers, and the other is to 
pay its portion of the indebtedness and maintenance and operations of the State Water Project.  At this 
time, these two different purposes use two distinct types of income to sustain their related activities.  
Because of this, the financial statements typically look a bit different from other organizations that have 
only one major type of income. 
 
The Agency receives two major sources of funding:  revenue from water sales, and revenue from property 
taxes.  Revenue from water sales falls into the operations portion of the statements, and revenue from 
property taxes falls into the non-operations portion of the statements. 
 
However, the expenses to maintain the operations portion of the Agency’s efforts exceed its income from 
operations at this time.  Examination of just the operations portion of the statements reveals what looks 
like a loss.  However, tax revenue, by design, has been enacted to pay for some of the operations ex-
pense, but is relegated to the non-operations portion of the statements by accounting convention.  So, 
even though operations look like a loss, in actuality, by viewing the statements as a whole, it is clear that 
the Agency is receiving at least enough to cover its expenses. 
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Graph of Combined Operating and Non-Operating Expenses 

 
By reviewing the table below, it is possible to see that overall income (Operating and Non-operating) 
totals $37.56 million for FY 2020-21, an increase of $0.55 million from the previous fiscal year.  Overall 
expenses (Operating and Non-Operating) totaled $25.47 million for FY 2020-21, a decrease of $2.12 
million from the previous fiscal year.  The resulting Net Income was $12.09 million, an increase from the 
previous fiscal year of $2.67 million, due mostly to tax revenue.   
 
The Agency purchased and delivered about 8,500 AF of water FY 2020-21, significantly less than in FY 
2019-20.  Looking ahead, FY 2021-22 is expected to be significantly drier, as the State Water Project 
allocation for 2021 was 5%, and the allocation for 2022 might start at 0%. 
 
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources for FY 2020-21 were $205.91 million, an increase of 
$11.81 million from the previous fiscal year.  This is divided into four categories:  Current Assets (cash 
and investments that can be liquidated in 12 months), Restricted Assets (assets that are designated for 
a particular purpose), Capital Assets (assets that have a life longer than 1 year and are not intended for 
sale during the normal course of business) and pension and OPEB-related Deferred Outflows of Re-
sources (the result of the new GASB rules).  Current Assets increased $0.04 million, Restricted Assets 
increased $3.90 million, Capital Assets increased $7.72 million, Deferred Outflows of Resources in-
creased $0.15 million. 
 
Current Liabilities were $0.36 million, a decrease of $0.13 million from the previous fiscal year. Long 
Term Liabilities were $0.71 million, a decrease of about $.03 million.  
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Pension and OPEB-related Deferred Inflows of Resources were about $0.22 million, a decrease of about 
$0.11 million.  Therefore, Net Position (the combination of Total Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and 
Deferred Outflows) for FY 2020-21 were $204.63 million, a net increase of $12.09 million. 

6/30/2021 6/30/2020 6/30/2019

Current Assets 16.44 16.39 16.16

Restricted Assets 64.63 60.73 54.06

Capital Assets 124.10 116.38 114.81

Deferred Outflows 0.74 0.60 0.51

Current Liabilities 0.36 0.49 1.21

Noncurrent Liabilities 0.71 0.74 1.15

Deferred Inflows 0.22 0.33 0.06

Net Position 204.63 192.54 183.12

Operating Revenues 3.37 5.04 4.55

Operating Expenses ( 25.36) ( 27.50) ( 31.07)

Non‐Operating Revenues

    Interest 0.45 1.30 1.33

    Property Taxes 33.21 29.13 28.25

    Miscellaneous 0.53 1.54 1.36

Non‐Operating Expenses ( 0.11) ( 0.09) ( 0.08)

Change in Net Position 12.09 9.42 4.35

(in millions)

The past few years have seen new reporting standards regarding pension liabilities and other post-em-
ployment benefits.  The new standards change the way pension expenses and liabilities are recorded, 
and this change has had a minor impact on the statements of the Agency. 

Previously, contributions to the CalPERS defined benefit pension plan were recorded as current ex-
penses.  Notes to the financial statements provided information about the composition and status of the 
investment pool that the Agency was assigned to by CalPERS.  

Now, in an attempt to more accurately categorize the transactions associated with current and future 
pension costs, Agency contributions to pension plans have been reclassified.  In the Agency’s financial 
statements, current year pension contributions more closely match the year they impact pension bal-
ances.  In addition, the statements include deferred outflows (in essence, future expenses) and deferred 
inflows (in essence, future credits), as well as a long-term pension liability. 
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The potential future pension cost is determined by an actuarial study, which considers a number of fac-
tors, including current employees of the Agency, their years of service, retired employees of the Agency, 
and estimates for future earnings of investments made by CalPERS.  The Agency has been assigned to 
an investment pool that is managed by CalPERS.  The estimate of the pension liability of the entire pool 
is a current estimate of the difference between the estimated pension cost and the funded status of the 
pool.  The Agency is allocated a proportionate share of the entire pool.  The proportionate share is listed 
as a Noncurrent Liability in the Liability section of the Net Assets statement.  Future contributions to the 
unfunded liability could change the classification of the fund balance. 
 
For Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB), the Agency joined an investment pool sponsored by 
CalPERS to build a trust fund to pay for future OPEB expenses.  The Agency’s first contribution to the 
pool, California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT), was made in 2009.  Annual contributions 
were made in accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, and contributions to the trust and direct pay-
ments for health care costs were recorded as current expenses. 
 
Starting with FY 2018-19, GASB Statement No.75 took effect, which is an attempt to more accurately 
categorize the transactions associated with current and future OPEB costs.  Agency contributions to 
CERBT and direct expenses have been reclassified, and the statements include deferred outflows and 
deferred inflows, as well as a long-term OPEB liability.  The estimate of OPEB liability is a current estimate 
of the difference between the estimated OPEB cost and the funded status of CERBT.  This amount is 
listed as a Noncurrent Liability in the Liability section of the Net Assets statement.  Future contributions 
to CERBT could change the classification of the balance of the Agency’s net OPEB obligation. 
 
The Agency’s involvement with CERBT requires that an actuarial study to determine the Agency’s po-
tential future OPEB costs be made every 2 years.  The study also estimates the current level of funding, 
to help gauge the Agency’s progress in fully funding its OPEB obligations. 
 
Assessed Valuation 
 
The following chart reflects the Agency’s assessed property tax valuations.  Assessed valuations in-
creased significantly from the years ending June 30, 2005 to 2008; however, as a result of the economic 
downturn, assessed values leveled off for the year ending in 2009, and declined by about 15% by the 
year ending in 2013.  A recent analysis showed that the assessed values in the Agency’s area are in-
creasing, and while they usually fluctuate similarly to rest of the Inland Empire, a significant increase in 
both residential and commercial construction activity has resulted in a significant increase in assessed 
values. 
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Categories of Assets 
 
The Agency is required to present its assets in three categories:  Invested in Capital Assets, Restricted 
Assets and Unrestricted Assets. 
 
Invested in Capital Assets 
 
At June 30, 2021, Capital Assets totaled $124.10 million (net of Accumulated Depreciation and Amorti-
zation) and consisted of Investment in State Water Rights, Utility Plant in Service, and Construction in 
Progress.  Utility Plant in Service is divided into additional categories of Land and Rights of Way, Source 
of Supply, Transmission and Distribution, Buildings, Furniture and Fixtures, Technical Equipment and 
Transportation Equipment.  The table on the next page groups these assets by whether they are being 
depreciated or amortized, or not.  
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Balance Balance Balance

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2020 Additions Deletions June 30, 2021

Capital Assets, not being depreciated

   Land and Rights of Way 4,138,966           4,138,966           1,977                ‐                         4,140,943                      

   Construction in Progress 12,122,281         14,027,985         1,961,354        11,347,250      4,642,090                      

Total Capital Assets, not being

depreciated 16,261,247         18,166,951         1,963,331        11,347,250      8,783,033                      

Capital Assets, being depreciated/amortized

   Investment in State Water Rights 149,062,702       154,192,311       6,317,618        ‐                         160,509,929                 

   Source of Supply 15,758,338         15,774,603         6,643,769        ‐                         22,418,372                   

   Transmission and Distribution 1,351,614           1,351,614           7,653,654        ‐                         9,005,268                      

   Buildings and Improvements 1,645,293           1,629,028           1,629,028                      

   Furniture and Fixtures 129,857               129,857               17,180              20,497              126,541                         

   Technical Equipment 94,439                 94,439                 ‐                         3,250                91,189                           

   Transportation Equipment 78,613                 78,613                 ‐                         ‐                         78,613                           

Total Capital Assets being depreciated

or amortized 168,120,856       173,250,465       20,632,221      23,747              193,858,939                 

Total Capital Assets 184,382,104       191,417,416       22,595,552      11,370,997      202,641,972$               

Capital Asset Activity for the Fiscal Year

 
 
The Agency made payments to the Department of Water Resources during the year totaling $25.44 mil-
lion.  This amount included expenditures for water purchases, as well as payments for indebtedness, and 
operations and maintenance of the State Water Project.  
 
State Water Project deliveries through the East Branch Extension and the Cherry Valley Pump Station to 
the Agency service area started in July, 2003.  Deliveries to retailers in FY 2020-21 totaled 8,472 AF, 
and included deliveries to Yucaipa Valley Water District through facilities jointly owned and operated with 
the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District.  The allocation for 2020 was significantly lower than 
2019, so the Agency did not have as much water to deliver this fiscal year.  
 
Additions to Construction in Progress totaled $1.96 million between July 1, 2020 and June 30, 2021.    
The primary projects currently in Construction in Progress include improvements to the East Branch Ex-
tension Phase 2 project and participation rights in a feasibility study to build a new reservoir named Sites 
Reservoir to increase the reliability of the State Water Project.  A number of projects were completed this 
fiscal year, the largest being the San Gorgonio Recharge Facility at Brookside.  Overall, Construction in 
Progress decreased by approximately $11.3 million, as projects were completed and capitalized or ex-
pensed. 
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Restricted Assets 
 
The Agency had Restricted Assets of $64.63 million, which consisted of tax proceeds that were levied 
for State Water Project payments, less actual State Water Project related expenditures. 
 
Unrestricted Assets 
 
The Agency had Unrestricted Assets of $16.44 million, which consisted primarily of water sales, general 
purpose tax proceeds and investment income, less general and administrative expenses not related to 
State Water Project expenditures. 
 
Contacting the Agency’s Financial Management 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our customers, taxpayers, and creditors with an overview of 
the agency’s financial operations and condition.  If you have questions about this report or need additional 
information, please contact the Agency’s Chief Financial Officer at 1210 Beaumont Ave., Beaumont, 
California 92223. 

27.1%

52.3%

12.8%

3.8%

3.4% 0.6%

Assets Owned
(Other than State Water Rights)

June 30, 2021

Utility Plant

Restricted Assets

Cash & Investments

C.I.P

Land & Rights of Way

Other Current Assets

Total = 100% 
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SAN GORGONIO PASS WATER AGENCY  
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June 30, 2021 and 2020 
 
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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2021 2020
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF

RESOURCES
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,895,910$      851,816$         
Cash in Local Agency Investment Fund 13,847,599      14,539,799      
Accounts receivable -                 231,021           
Property taxes receivable 635,575          606,322           
Interest receivable 48,086            157,029           
Other 5,990              5,220               

Total current assets 16,433,160      16,391,207      

Restricted assets
Cash in Local Agency Investment Fund 30,532,769      20,866,184      
Investments 30,758,333      36,791,110      
Property taxes receivable 3,338,522       3,072,239        

Total restricted assets 64,629,624      60,729,533      

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets

Investment in State Water Project 160,509,929    154,192,311     
Utility plant in service 33,349,010      19,058,154      
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (78,538,941)    (75,038,498)     
Land and rights of way 4,140,944       4,138,967        
Construction in progress 4,642,089       14,027,984      

Total noncurrent assets 124,103,031    116,378,918     

Total assets 205,165,815    193,499,658     

Deferred outflows of resources
Pension related 690,597 525,934
OPEB related 52,892            70,211             

Total deferred outflows of resources 743,489          596,145

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 205,909,304$  194,095,803$    
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2021 2020
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 357,466$        467,065$         
Construction deposit -                 25,000             

Total current liabilities 357,466          492,065           

Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued vacation and sick leave 115,656          86,804             
Net pension liability 558,416          627,260           
Net OPEB liability 35,636            26,395             

Total noncurrent liabilities 709,708          740,459           

Total liabilities 1,067,174       1,232,524        

Deferred inflows of resources
Pension related 139,315          132,848           
OPEB related 77,651            193,638           

Total deferred inflows of resources 216,966          326,486           

Net position
Net investment in capital assets, including State

Water Project costs 124,103,030    116,378,918     
Restricted for State Water Project 64,629,624      60,729,533      
Unrestricted 15,892,510 15,428,342

Total net position 204,625,164    192,536,793     

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and net position 205,909,304$  194,095,803$   
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2021 2020

Operating revenues

Water sales 3,371,063$       5,035,859$       

Operating expenses

Source of supply

Maintenance 15,190,282       14,708,787       

Purchased water 4,605,847         5,621,798         

Total source of supply 19,796,129       20,330,585       

Transmission and distribution

Utilities 10,472              11,461              

Maintenance 8,198                56,688              

Total transmission and distribution 18,670              68,149              

General and administrative expenses

Salaries 517,419            525,278            

Director expense 132,934            129,806            

Payroll taxes 47,830              46,080              

Employee health benefits 78,512              77,639              

Employee retirement benefits 170,559            196,896            

Office supplies and expense 60,039              18,849              

Travel expenses 1,109                21,069              

Automotive expense 9,876                7,813                

Utilities and telephone 17,159              16,499              

Repairs and maintenance 58,034              18,263              

Insurance 29,658              26,822              

Administrative expense 6,805                56,652              

Membership dues and assessments 26,310              30,894              

Public relations 26,850              8,060                

Election expense 102,959            -                        

Legal services 122,466            115,303            

Engineering and consulting services 481,276            244,515            

Penalties -                   35,000              

Accounting and auditing 20,200              19,785              

Outside professional services 109,958            47,477              

Depreciation 1,213,910         653,021            

Amortization 2,310,279         4,809,532         

Total general and administrative 5,544,642         7,105,253         

Total operating expenses 25,359,441       27,503,987       

Operating loss (21,988,378)$   (22,468,128)$     
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2021 2020

Operating loss (21,988,378)$   (22,468,128)$    

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Property taxes - general purpose 3,878,948         3,305,632         

Property taxes - debt service 29,333,169       25,822,846       

Investment income 444,636            1,298,866         

Unrealized gain on investments (356,064)          448,466            

Other revenue 460,313            1,077,062         

County collection charge (114,951)          (90,978)             

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 33,646,051       31,861,894       

Income before capital contributions 11,657,673       9,393,766         

Capital contributions 430,698            22,099              

Change in net position 12,088,371       9,415,865         

Net position, beginning of year 192,536,793 183,120,928

Net position, end of year 204,625,164$   192,536,793$    
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2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers 3,602,084$      5,533,623$      
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (22,029,401)    (22,979,996)    

Net cash used in operating activities (18,427,317)    (17,446,373)    

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Property taxes 32,916,581      29,119,732      

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 32,916,581      29,119,732      

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Purchase of capital assets (11,452,137)    (7,035,312)      
Other revenue 460,313          1,077,062       
Contributed capital 430,698          22,099            
Construction deposit (25,000)           -                     
County collection charge (114,951)         (90,978)           

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities (10,701,077)    (6,027,129)      

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchased investments 5,676,713       7,333,002       
Interest received 553,579          1,339,261       

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 6,230,292       8,672,263       

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 10,018,479      14,318,493      

Cash and cash equivalents
Balance, beginning of year 36,257,799      21,939,306      

Balance, end of year 46,276,278$    36,257,799$    
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2021 2020

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to statements
of net position
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 1,895,910$      851,816$        
Unrestricted cash in Local Agency Investment Fund 13,847,599      14,539,799      
Restricted cash in Local Agency Investment Fund 30,532,769      20,866,184      

Total cash and cash equivalents 46,276,278$    36,257,799$    

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
used in operating activities
Operating loss (21,988,378)$   (22,468,128)$   
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used

in operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 3,524,189       5,462,553       
Impairment on construction in progress 203,835          -                     
Noncash pension and OPEB expense (316,467)         (162,670)         
(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable 231,021          497,764          
Other current assets (770)               (270)               

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (109,599)         (717,015)         
Accrued vacation and sick 28,852            (58,607)           

Net cash used in operating activities (18,427,317)$   (17,446,373)$   

 
 
 
 DRAFT N

OT F
OR 

DIS
TRIB

UTIO
N

10
-1

4-
21



SAN GORGONIO PASS WATER AGENCY  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

-19- 

NOTE 1- REPORTING ENTITY 
 
The San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (the "Agency"), a special district of the state of California, is one 
of 29 state water contractors created by the state legislature. The Agency will ultimately manage water 
resources and supply water to local water districts. The Agency's service area extends from Calimesa to 
Cabazon through the San Gorgonio Pass area in Riverside County (the "County"). 
 
NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 
The Agency reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations that are 
financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the Agency 
is that the costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis (including 
depreciation) be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. Revenues are recognized in the 
accounting period in which they are earned, and expenses are recognized in the period incurred. An 
enterprise fund is accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus. This means that 
all assets and liabilities associated with the activity (whether current or noncurrent) are included on the 
statements of net position. 
 
The Agency distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from those revenues and expenses that are 
nonoperating. Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated by water sales, while operating 
expenses pertain directly to the furnishing of those services. Nonoperating revenues and expenses are 
those revenues and expenses generated that are not directly associated with the normal business of 
supplying water services. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, the Agency considers all short-term debt securities 
purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Agency invests 
funds with the State of California's Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). Due to the high liquidity of this 
investment, the funds are classified as cash equivalents. For credit risk purposes, the fund is not rated. 
 
Investments 
Investments are reported in the accompanying statements of net position at fair value based on the last 
reported sales price published on the national exchange. Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal 
year are recognized as investment income reported for that fiscal year. Investment income includes in-
terest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of 
investments. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
Accounts receivable consists of amounts owed by local districts in the regular course of business opera-
tions. Accounts receivable is stated net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. The Agency considers 
accounts receivable to be fully collectible and no allowance for doubtful accounts is provided in these 
financial statements. 
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NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Property Taxes 
The County of Riverside Assessor's Office assesses all real and personal property within the County 
each year. The County of Riverside Tax Collector's Office bills and collects the Agency's share of property 
taxes and assessments. The County of Riverside Treasurer's Office remits current and delinquent prop-
erty tax collections to the Agency throughout the year. Property tax in California is levied in accordance 
with Article 13A of the State Constitution at 1.0 percent of countywide assessed valuations. 
 
Property taxes receivable at year-end are related to property taxes collected by the County of Riverside, 
which have not been credited to the Agency's cash balance as of June 30, 2021. The property tax calen-
dar is as follows: 

Lien date: January 1
Levy date: July 1
Due date: First installment November 1

Second installment February 1
Collection date: First installment December 10

Second installment April 10  
 
The County will designate property taxes relating to debt service (restricted) or general purposes. Funds 
have been established by the Agency to account for the use of these designated assets. As of June 30, 
2021, certain taxes levied by the County and allocated to the Agency remain uncollected. The Agency 
considers these property taxes to be fully collectible and no allowance is provided in these financial 
statements. 
 
Capital Assets 
Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. Agency policy has set the 
capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $5,000. Donated assets are recorded at estimated 
acquisition value at the date of donation. Upon retirement or other disposition of capital assets, the cost 
and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective balances and any gains or losses 
are recognized. 
 
Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: 
 

Assets Years

Pipelines 20 - 40
Buildings 25
Spreading ground facilities 20
Furniture and fixtures 5 - 10
Technical equipment 5
Transportation 5  
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NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Participation rights are being amortized on a unit-rate basis. The unit-rate has been determined by divid-
ing the total estimated capital costs to be charged to the Agency by total estimated water deliveries over 
the project repayment period. The resulting rate, which will be adjusted periodically to reflect changes in 
estimates, would then be applied to actual water deliveries in the current year. 
 
Construction in progress includes all capitalized costs for expenditures directly incurred to bring a capital 
asset to a useable condition. These capitalized costs will be recorded to capital assets when the asset is 
operational. At that time, the costs will be depreciated or amortized over the respective capital asset’s 
useful life. 
 
Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave 
The Agency has a policy whereby an employee can accumulate unused sick leave and vacation. Sick 
leave is to be used for extended periods of sickness; however, upon termination or retirement, a portion 
will be paid as additional benefits to the employee. At retirement or termination, employees will be paid 
for 50 percent of the then unused sick leave up to the maximum 480 hours at their regular payroll rates 
in effect at the date of termination. The Agency has provided for these future costs by accruing 50 percent 
of the earned and unused sick leave up to the maximum number of hours and 100 percent of the earned 
and unused vacation. 
 
Pension Accounting 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of 
the plan and additions to/deductions from the plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the 
same basis as they are reported by California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) Finan-
cial Office. For this purpose, benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions, are recog-
nized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at 
fair value. 
 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) 
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred in-
flows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position 
of the CalPERS plan governed by the Public Employees' Medical & Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) and 
additions to/deductions from PEMHCA's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same 
basis as they are reported by PEMHCA. For this purpose, PEMHCA recognizes benefit payments when 
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value, except 
for money market investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts that have a 
maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost. 
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NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Net Position 
The financial statements utilize a net position presentation. The net position is categorized as follows: 
 
Net Investment in Capital Assets, including State Water Project costs - This component of net position 
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any debt outstanding against 
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 
 
Restricted for State Water Project - This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net 
position use through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), gran-
tors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Unrestricted Net Position - This component of the net position consists of a net position that does not 
meet the definition of restricted or net investment in capital assets. 
 
Restricted and Unrestricted Resources 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Agency's practice to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
Budgetary Policies 
The Agency adopts an annual nonappropriated budget for planning, control, and evaluation purposes. 
Budgetary control and evaluation are affected by comparisons of actual revenues and expenses with 
planned revenues and expenses for the period. Encumbrance accounting is not used to account for 
commitments related to unperformed contracts for construction and services. 
 
Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported 
in the financial statements and disclosures made in the accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
While management believes these estimates are adequate, actual results could differ from those esti-
mates. 
 
NOTE 3 - STATE WATER PROJECT 
 
The Agency has contracted with the State Department of Water Resources to participate in the State 
Water Project to convey water from Northern California into the Southern California area. This participa-
tion requires payments in varying amounts by the Agency for many years into the future, including capital 
costs in connection with the transportation facilities, conservation (O.M.P. and R.) costs, and variable 
costs for the actual delivery of water. 
 
The Agency has been billed formally through calendar year 2021 only. The policy of the Agency is not to 
accrue any amounts which are due after the fiscal year-end. The payments which have been billed but 
are not reflected on the books and are not due until after the fiscal year-end of the Agency are approxi-
mately as follows: 
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NOTE 3 - STATE WATER PROJECT (Continued) 
 
Charges for Capital and Minimum Operations, Maintenance, Power and Replacement Components

Water System Revenue Bond
Due July 1, 2021 223,167$               
Due January 1, 2022 237,145                
Due July 1, 2022 237,145                

Capital Cost Components
Delta Water Charges

Due July 1, 2021 262,265                
Due January 1, 2022 347,883                
Due July 1, 2022 347,883                

Transportation Charges
Due July 1, 2021 (307,434)               
Due January 1, 2022 (304,257)               
Due July 1, 2022 (304,258)               

Minimum O.M.P. & R.
Delta Water Charge

Due monthly, starting July 1, 2021 75,224                  
Total for six months 451,344                
Due monthly, starting January 1, 2022 83,949                  
Total for six months 503,694                
Due monthly, starting July 1, 2022 83,949                  
Total for six months 503,694                

Transportation Charge
Due monthly, starting July 1, 2021 581,394                
Total for six months 3,488,364              
Due monthly, starting January 1, 2022 624,598                
Total for six months 3,747,588              
Due monthly, starting July 1, 2022 624,598                
Total for six months 3,747,588               
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NOTE 3 - STATE WATER PROJECT (Continued) 
 
Charges for the Devil Canyon-Castaic Contract

Debt Service on Bonds
Due July 1, 2021 48,819$                
Due January 1, 2022 49,759                  
Due July 1, 2022 49,759                  

O.M.P.& R. Component
Due monthly, starting July 1, 2021 17,469                  
Total for six months 104,814                
Due monthly, starting January 1, 2022 18,926                  
Total for six months 113,556                
Due monthly, starting July 1, 2022 18,925                  
Total for six months 113,550                

Charges for Off-Aqueduct Power Facilities
Maintenance

Due monthly, starting July 1, 2021 130                       
Total for six months 780                       

RG4 Separation
Due monthly, starting July 1, 2021 1,328                    
Total for six months 7,968                    
Due monthly, starting January 1, 2022 1,008                    
Total for six months 6,048                    
Due monthly, starting July 1, 2022 1,007                    
Total for six months 6,042                    

Charges for East Branch Extension Facilities
Allocated Charges

Due September 1, 2021 10,338,404            
Due March 1, 2022 3,673,390              
Due September 1, 2022 10,337,344            

Charges for Tehachapi Second Afterbay Facilities
Capital Cost of Transportation Charge

Due September 1, 2021 22,430                  
Due March 1, 2022 22,074                  
Due September 1, 2022 22,072                  

Totals for All Charges of the State Water Project
Total Due Starting July 1, 2021 14,640,921            
Total Due Starting January 1, 2022 8,396,880              

Total Due for FY 2021-2022 23,037,801            
Total Due Starting July 1, 2022 15,060,819            

Total Due for Calendar Year 2022 23,457,699$          
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NOTE 3 - STATE WATER PROJECT (Continued) 
 
The Agency has committed to purchase other components of water that may become available at rea-
sonable prices in the future. The future payments for this excess water are not determinable at this time. 
 
NOTE 4 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS 
 
The Agency's investment practices are prescribed by various provisions of the California Government 
Code and by administrative policies. The Agency's investment policy is approved annually by the Board. 
 
Cash, cash equivalents, and investments as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 are included in the statements 
of net position as follows: 
 

2021 2020
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted 15,743,509$     15,391,615$     
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 30,532,769       20,866,184
Total cash and cash equivalents 46,276,278       36,257,799       
Investments 30,758,333 36,791,110       

77,034,611$     73,048,909$     
 

For purposes of the following discussion, these accounts have been classified as follows: 
 

2021 2020
Deposits 1,895,910$       851,816$          
Investments 75,138,701 72,197,093

77,034,611$     73,048,909$     
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NOTE 4 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Investments Authorized by the Agency's Investment Policy 
Under the provisions of the Agency's investment policy, adopted by Board Resolution No. 2015-10 in 
September 2015, which is in accordance with California Government Code Sections 53600 through 
53686 et seq., the types of investments authorized for deposit are identified in the following table: 
 

Maximum
Authorized Investment Type Maturity

U.S. Treasury 2 years
Federal agency -
Municipal bonds -
Negotiable certificates of deposit 3 years
Repurchase agreements 1 year
Medium term notes 5 years
Money market mutual funds -
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) -
CalTRUST short-term fund 2 years
CalTRUST medium-term fund 3 ½ years

 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
There were no investments in any one issuer, other than U.S. Treasury Securities, LAIF and CalTRUST 
that represent five percent or more of the total investments of the Agency at June 30, 2021 and 2020. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
The Agency maintains deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance limits. 
California law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government securities with a 
market value of 110 percent of the Agency's cash on deposit or first trust deed mortgage notes with a 
market value of 150 percent of the deposit as collateral for these deposits. Under California law, this 
collateral is held in a separate investment pool by another institution in the Agency's name and places it 
ahead of general creditors of the institution. 
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NOTE 4 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the possibility that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value 
of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair 
value to changes in market interest rates. As a means of highlighting exposure to interest rate risk, the 
current values of all securities are reported quarterly to the Board for investments. Investment fair value 
and duration at June 30, 2021 and 2020, other than investments in LAIF and CalTRUST, are as follows: 
 

Effective
Authorized Investment Type 2021 Duration

U.S. Treasury Securities 2,055,453$    2021
U.S. Treasury Securities 1,995,320      2022
Negotiable certificates of deposit 2,239,595      2021
Negotiable certificates of deposit 3,259,078      2022

Effective
Authorized Investment Type 2020 Duration

U.S. Treasury Securities 2,074,354$    2021
U.S. Treasury Securities 1,991,080      2022
US Government Bonds 1,005,790      2023
Negotiable certificates of deposit 2,490,769      2020
Negotiable certificates of deposit 4,790,862      2021
Negotiable certificates of deposit 3,290,870      2022  
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NOTE 4 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
Information about the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations 
is provided by the following tables: 

Not % of
Authorized Investment Amount AAf Aaa A(1-3) Rated Portfolio

As of June 30, 2021:
Cash 100$                 -$                     -$                   -$                    100$                N/A
Deposits with financial

institutions 1,895,810         -                       -                     1,895,810        -                      N/A
U.S. Treasury securities 4,050,773         -                       4,050,773       -                      -                      5.39%
Negotiable certificates

of deposit 5,498,673         -                       -                     5,498,673        -                      7.32%
CalTRUST short-term

fund 21,208,887       21,208,887 -                     -                      -                      28.23%
LAIF 44,380,368       -                       -                     -                      44,380,368 59.06%

77,034,611$     21,208,887$     4,050,773$     7,394,483$      44,380,468$    100.00%

Not % of
Authorized Investment Amount AAf Aaa A(1-3) Rated Portfolio

As of June 30, 2020:
Cash 100$                 -$                     -$                   -$                    100$                N/A
Deposits with financial

institutions 851,716            -                       -                     851,716           -                      N/A
U.S. government bonds 1,005,790         -                       1,005,790       -                      -                      1.39%
U.S. Treasury securities 4,065,434         -                       4,065,434       -                      -                      5.63%
Negotiable certificates

of deposit 10,572,501       -                       -                     10,572,501      -                      14.64%
CalTRUST short-term

fund 21,147,385       21,147,385 -                     -                      -                      29.29%
LAIF 35,405,983       -                       -                     -                      35,405,983 49.05%

73,048,909$     21,147,385$     5,071,224$     11,424,217$    35,406,083$    100.00%
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NOTE 4 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Deposits 
The California Government Code and the Agency's investment policy do not contain legal or policy re-
quirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than 
the following provision for deposits: the California Government Code requires that a financial institution 
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collat-
eral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). 
The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the 
total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure 
Agency deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of the secured 
public deposits. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the carrying amount of the Agency's deposits was 
$1,895,910 and $851,816, respectively, and the bank balances were $1,942,023 and $890,883, respec-
tively. The Agency has cash in financial institutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
(FDIC) up to $250,000, and the remaining balance is collateralized in accordance with the California 
Government Code. 
 
LAIF 
The Agency is a voluntary participant in LAIF that is regulated by the California Government Code under 
the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The balance available for withdrawal is based on 
the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. For LAIF's 
annual financial report, contact the California State Treasurer at 915 Capitol Mall, Room 106, Sacra-
mento, California 95814. 
 
CalTRUST 
The Agency is participating in CalTRUST, a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement of the Investment Trust 
of California. The principal executive office is located at 1100 K Street, Suite 101, Sacramento, California 
95814. CalTRUST is subject to the California Joint Exercise of Powers Act. Each participant in CalTRUST 
must be a California Public Agency. The purpose of CalTRUST is to consolidate investment activities of 
its participants and thereby reduce duplication, achieve economies of scale and carry out coherent and 
consolidated investment strategies through the issuance of shares of beneficial interest in investments 
purchased by CalTRUST. 
 
CalTRUST currently has a board of trustees that consists of 7 trustees who are responsible for the overall 
management, supervision, and administration of CalTRUST including formulation of investment and op-
erating policy guidelines of the funds. 
 
The Agency has invested in the short-term fund and the medium-term fund. The short-term fund has a 
targeted portfolio duration of 0 to 2 years, and the medium-term fund has a targeted portfolio duration of 
1½ to 3½ years. Investment strategies are to attain as high a level of current income as is consistent with 
the preservation of principal. 
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NOTE 4 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
The shares in the two funds are not registered under any federal or state securities law nor under the 
Investment Company Act of 1940, and are thus not subject to the various protections of the 1940 Act 
which apply to certain pooled vehicles such as money market funds and other mutual funds. The short­ 
term and medium-term funds are valued at net asset value which is calculated by dividing the total value 
of the securities and other assets, less any liabilities, by the total outstanding shares of each fund. Liabil-
ities include all accrued expenses and fees of each fund. The value of the portfolio securities is deter-
mined on the basis of the market value of such securities or, if market quotations are not readily available, 
at fair value under guidelines established by the Trustees. Investments with short remaining maturities 
may be valued at amortized cost, which the Trustees have determined to equal fair value. 
 
Short-term fund deposits will be allowed to be invested on the business day they are received, while the 
medium-term fund deposits may be invested once per month on the last business day. Short-term funds 
can be redeemed at net asset value per share at the next determined date and/or time of calculation. 
Medium-term fund withdrawals can only occur once per month on the last business day of the month, 
provided that notice of intent to withdraw is delivered prior to five business days before month end. Shares 
will be redeemed at net asset value per share determined by the accountant on the last business day of 
each month. For both funds, the investment will remain in the fund until the day they are wired to the 
Agency. In the event of an emergency as defined by the Trustees, withdrawals may be made at such 
times and upon such prior notice within parameters defined by the Trustees. CalTRUST may, and is 
authorized by each participant to redeem shares owned by such participant (i) to the extent necessary to 
reimburse CalTRUST for any loss it has sustained by reason of the failure of such participant to make 
full payment for shares purchased by such participant, (ii) to the extent necessary to collect any charge 
relating to a transaction effected for the benefit of such participant which is applicable to shares, or (iii) 
as otherwise deemed necessary and desirable by the Trustees for CalTRUST to effectively carry out its 
obligations under the agreement, comply with applicable law, or any other obligations in connection with 
the affairs of CalTRUST. Redemption payments may be made in whole or in part in securities or other 
property of the funds. Participants receiving any such securities or other property on redemption will bear 
any costs of sale. Transfers among the funds will be considered a withdrawal from one fund and a deposit 
to another fund subject to restrictions and limitations of a withdrawal and deposit.DRAFT N
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NOTE 4 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Investments 
Fair Value of Investments 
GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application (GASB 72), provides the framework 
for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to 
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted 
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest 
priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under 
GASB 72 are described as follows: 
 

Level 1 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical 
assets as of the measurement date in active markets that the Agency has the 
ability to access. Fair values are determined using fund manager estimates. 
 

Level 2 Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets 
in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets in inactive mar-
kets; and model-based valuation techniques for which all significant assump-
tions are observable in the market or can be corroborated by observable mar-
ket data for substantially the full term of the assets. 

The asset's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of 
any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize 
the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value. There 
has been no change in the methodologies used at June 30, 2021 and 2020. 
 
Money markets: Valued at $1 per share in accordance with industry practice. 
 
U.S. government bonds: Valued at the closing price reported in the active market on which the individual 
bonds are traded 
 
U.S. Treasury securities: Valued at the closing price reported in the active market on which the individual 
securities are traded 
 
Negotiable certificate of deposit: Valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which the 
negotiable paper is traded 

Level 3 Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and include situations 
where there is little, if any, market activity for the investment. 
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NOTE 4 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
CalTRUST funds: The fair value of the Agency's investment in CalTRUST is based upon the net asset 
value (NAV) of shares held by the Agency at year-end. The net asset value per share is computed by 
dividing the total value of the securities and other assets, less any liabilities, by the total outstanding 
shares. Liabilities include all accrued expenses and fees, including expenses of the trust. The market 
value of portfolio securities is determined on the basis of the market value of such securities, or if market 
quotations are not readily available, at fair value under guidelines established by the trustees. Invest-
ments with short remaining maturities may be valued at amortized cost which the CalTRUST Board has 
determined to equal fair value. 
 
State pooled funds (Local Agency Investment Fund): The fair value of the Agency's investment in this 
pool is based upon the Agency's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF 
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). 
 
The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net 
realizable value or reflective of future fair value. Furthermore, while the Agency believes its valuation 
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies 
or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair 
value measurement at the reporting date. 
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NOTE 4 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Agency's investment assets at 
fair value as of June 30, 2021: 
 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

U.S. Treasury securities 4,050,773        -                       -                    4,050,773        
Negotiable certificates of deposit 5,498,673        -                       -                    5,498,673        
CalTRUST short-term fund -                       21,208,887 -                    21,208,887      
State pooled funds (Local Agency

Investment Fund) -                       44,380,368 -                    44,380,368      

9,549,446$      65,589,255$    -$                  75,138,701$    
 

 
The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Agency's investment assets at 
fair value as of June 30, 2020: 
 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

U.S. government bonds 1,005,790$      -$                     -$                  1,005,790$      
U.S. Treasury securities 4,065,434        -                       -                    4,065,434        
Negotiable certificates of deposit 10,572,501      -                       -                    10,572,501      
CalTRUST short-term fund -                       21,147,385      -                    21,147,385      
State pooled funds (Local Agency

Investment Fund) -                       35,405,983 -                    35,405,983      

15,643,725$    56,553,368$    -$                  72,197,093$    
 

 
At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Agency had no investments in repurchase and reverse repurchase agree-
ments and did not invest in such during the years then ended.
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2021, the changes in capital assets for the Agency were as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2020 Additions Disposals June 30, 2021

Non-depreciable capital assets
Land and rights of way 4,138,967$        1,977$              -$                      4,140,944$        
Construction in progress 14,027,984 1,961,354         11,347,249       4,642,089

18,166,951 1,963,331         11,347,249       8,783,033
Depreciable capital assets

Investment in State Water Project 154,192,311      6,317,618         -                        160,509,929      
Source of supply 15,774,603        6,643,769         -                        22,418,372        
Recharge facilities 1,351,614          7,653,654         -                        9,005,268          
Technical equipment 94,439               -                        3,250                91,189               
Office building 1,508,644          -                        -                        1,508,644          
Solar equipment 120,384             -                        -                        120,384             
Furniture and fixtures 129,857             17,180              20,497              126,540             
Transportation equipment 78,613               -                        -                        78,613               

173,250,465      20,632,221       23,747              193,858,939      

191,417,416$    22,595,552$     11,370,996$     202,641,972$    
 

 
For the year ended June 30, 2021, the changes in accumulated depreciation and amortization for the 
Agency were as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2020 Additions Disposals June 30, 2021

Depreciable capital assets
Investment in State Water Project 65,155,159$      2,310,279$       -$                      67,465,438$      
Source of supply 7,399,330          698,446            -                        8,097,776          
Recharge facilities 1,115,082          437,103            -                        1,552,185          
Technical equipment 94,439               -                        3,250                91,189               
Office building 969,361             60,442              -                        1,029,803          
Solar equipment 114,367             6,017                -                        120,384             
Furniture and fixtures 125,613             5,169                20,496              110,286             
Transportation equipment 65,147               6,733                -                        71,880               

75,038,498$      3,524,189$       23,746$            78,538,941$      
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the changes in capital assets for the Agency were as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2019 Additions Disposals June 30, 2020

Non-depreciable capital assets
Land and rights of way 4,138,967$        -$                  -$                      4,138,967$        
Construction in progress 12,122,281 1,905,703         -                        14,027,984

16,261,248        1,905,703         -                        18,166,951        
Depreciable capital assets

Investment in State Water Project 149,062,702 5,129,609         -                        154,192,311
Source of supply 15,774,603        -                        -                        15,774,603        
Recharge facilities 1,351,614          -                        -                        1,351,614          
Technical equipment 94,439               -                        -                        94,439               
Office building 1,508,644          -                        -                        1,508,644          
Solar equipment 120,384             -                        -                        120,384             
Furniture and fixtures 129,857             -                        -                        129,857             
Transportation equipment 78,613               -                        -                        78,613               

168,120,856      5,129,609         -                        173,250,465      

184,382,104$    7,035,312$       -$                      191,417,416$    
 

 
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the changes in accumulated depreciation and amortization for the 
Agency were as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2019 Additions Disposals June 30, 2020

Depreciable capital assets
Investment in State Water Project 60,345,627$      4,809,532$       -$                      65,155,159$      
Source of supply 6,903,346          495,984            -                        7,399,330          
Recharge facilities 1,047,501          67,581              -                        1,115,082          
Technical equipment 94,439               -                        -                        94,439               
Office building 909,011             60,350              -                        969,361             
Solar equipment 102,336             12,031              -                        114,367             
Furniture and fixtures 124,261             1,352                -                        125,613             
Transportation equipment 49,424               15,723              -                        65,147               

69,575,945$      5,462,553$       -$                      75,038,498$      
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 
Construction in Progress is divided into 2 major categories.  The first category consists of items that are 
generally considered tangible and have an identifiable estimated cost.  Examples could be pipelines, 
valves, or fencing.  The second category consists of items that may be intangible, or items for which a 
total cost estimate is not identifiable.  Examples could be participation rights in studies for a future project, 
rights-of-way, or plans. 
 
In Category 1, the Agency currently has expended about $1,016,608 and expects to expend and addi-
tional $350,000 to complete the projects; the projects are about 26% completed. 
 
In Category 2, the Agency has expended about $3,625,482. 
 
NOTE 6 - JOINT VENTURES (JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS) 
 
The Association of California Water Agencies  
The Agency participates in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement (JPA) with the Association of 
California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority (JPIA). The relationship between the Agency 
and the JPA is such that the JPA is not a component unit of the Agency for financial reporting purposes. 
Audited financial statements are available by contacting the JPIA at 2100 Professional Drive, Roseville, 
California 95661. 
 
The Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority arranges for and provides 
insurance coverage for its nearly 365 member districts. JPIA is governed by a board of directors and 
each member agency is required to designate one representative from its local board of directors to 
participate in the JPIA board. From the board of directors, nine members of a ten-member executive 
committee are elected and delegated the authority to make JPIA's preliminary policy decisions relying 
upon input received from other standing and ad hoc committees and subcommittees. These policy deci-
sions, along with other matters such as financial and claims data, are ultimately brought before the full 
board for review and/or ratification. The board controls the operations of the JPIA, including selection of 
management and approval of operating budgets, independent of any influence by the member agencies 
beyond their representation on the board. JPIA provides joint protection coverage for losses in excess of 
the member districts' individually specified self-insurance retention levels. Individual claims (and aggre-
gate public liability and property claims) in excess of specified levels are covered by excess insurance 
policies purchased from commercial insurance carriers. 
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NOTE 6 - JOINT VENTURES (JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS) (Continued) 
 
Condensed audited financial information of the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers 
Insurance Authority for the years ended September 30, 2020 and 2019 are as follows: 
 

2020 2019

Total assets 237,525,073$   212,099,851$   
Deferred outflows of resources 1,054,750 553,790

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 238,579,823$   212,653,641$   

Total liabilities 113,075,164$   112,046,920$   
Deferred inflows of resources 1,817,452         1,672,219         
Net position 123,687,207     98,934,502       

Total liabilities, deferred inflows, and net position 238,579,823$   212,653,641$   

Total revenues 189,130,318$   173,647,293$   
Total expenses (172,886,738)    (169,356,246)    
Total other income 8,509,125         8,177,851         

Change in net position 24,752,705$     12,468,898$     
 

 
Delta Conveyance Finance Authority 
The Agency participates under a joint powers agreement (JPA) with the Delta Conveyance Finance Au-
thority (DCFA). The DCFA is a joint powers agency created in July 2018 as a conduit financing authority 
to assist the Department of Water Resources and the public water agency participants, currently all of 
whom are State Water Project Contractors, finance all or a portion of the Delta Conveyance Project. The 
Delta Conveyance Project is a major project that will deliver water from the Sacramento River near the 
northern end of Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta to the existing State Water Project and Central Valley 
Project pumping plants in the southern end of the delta. Its members consist of water agencies that 
contract with DWR for the purchase of water. Its operations are supported by the collection of contribu-
tions from its members. The governing board is made up of eleven representatives from member agen-
cies. Audited financial statements are available by contacting the DCFA at 1121 L Street, Suite 1045, 
Sacramento, California 95814.  
 
Condensed audited financial information of the Delta Conveyance Finance Authority, which is reported 
on a cash basis of accounting, for the year ended June 30, 2019, the most recent information available, 
is as follows: 

Cash receipts 401,900$          
Cash disbursements 175,870            

Excess of receipts over disbursements 226,030$          

Cash and investments at beginning of the year -                        
Cash and investments at end of the year 226,030$          
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NOTE 7 - PENSION PLAN 
 
(a) General Information about the Pension Plan 
Plan Description 
All full-time Agency employees are required to participate in the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Mis-
cellaneous Plan with CalPERS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pen-
sion plan. CalPERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public enti-
ties within the State of California. A menu of benefit provisions as well as other requirements is estab-
lished by State statutes within the Public Employee's Retirement Law. The Agency selects optional ben-
efit provisions from the benefit menu by contract with CalPERS and adopts those benefits through Board 
approval. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual report. Copies of CalPERS' annual finan-
cial report may be obtained from its Executive Office, 400 Q Street, Sacramento, CA 95811. 
 
Benefits Provided 
CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death bene-
fits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year 
of full-time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with 
statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for improved non-industrial disability benefits after 
five years of service. The Agency has chosen the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. 
 
Contribution Description 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the employer 
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be 
effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are determined 
through CalPERS' annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated 
amount necessary to finance any unfunded accrued costs of benefits earned by employees during the 
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The Agency is required to 
contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. 
The Agency's total employer contributions were $451,073 and $288,162 for the fiscal years ended June 
30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  
 
Active plan members who were hired before January 1, 2013, sometimes referred to as "Classic" em-
ployees, are required to contribute 8 percent of their annual covered salary. A resolution passed by the 
Board of the Agency directed the Agency to pay this portion, called Employer Paid Member Contributions 
(EPMC) through December 31, 2012. Beginning January 1, 2013, the Agency established two classes of 
employees, as dictated by the newly enacted Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA). By Board 
action, "Classic" employees began paying a portion of the EPMC starting January 1, 2013. For calendar 
year 2013, they contributed 1.0 percent of the annual covered salary as a pre-tax deduction. For calendar 
year 2014, they paid 2 percent of their annual covered salary. For calendar year 2015, and continuing, 
they pay 3 percent of their annual covered salary. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Agency's pickup of the 
employee's 5 percent share was $27,300 and $27,300, respectively. There are no PEPRA members 
employed by the Agency. 
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NOTE 7 - PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
The plan’s provisions and benefits at June 30, 2021 and 2020 are summarized as follows: 
 

Miscellaneous

Hire date Prior to January 1, 2013 On or after January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 3.0% at 60 2.0% at 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life
Final average compensation period 12 months 12 months
Sick leave credit Yes Yes
Retirement age 60 62
Monthly benefits as a percent of 

eligible compensation 3.00% 1.80% to 2.50%
Cost-of-living adjustment 4.0% maximum 4.0% maximum
Required employee contribution rates

2021 3.00% 8.00%
2020 3.00% 8.00%

Required employer contribution rates
2021 17.392% N/A
2020 16.413% N/A  

 
Net Pension Liability 
The Agency's net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the collective 
net pension liability of the Plan. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Agency reported the following net pension 
liability measured as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively: 
 

 

Amount Proportion Amount Proportion
Total pension liability 4,041,405$   0.02136% 3,783,873$   0.02104%

Fiduciary net position 3,482,989     0.02369% 3,156,613     0.02258%
Net pension liability 558,416$      0.00612% 627,260$      0.00784%

2021 2020

 
 
The Agency's proportion of the collective net pension liability decreased by 0.00172% since the last 
measurement date. 
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NOTE 7 - PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
(b) Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability 
For the measurement period ending June 30, 2020 (the measurement date), the total pension liability 
was determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2019 total pension liability determined in the June 30, 
2019 actuarial accounting valuation. For the measurement period ending June 30, 2019 (the measure-
ment date), the total pension liability was determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2018 total pension 
liability determined in the June 30, 2019 actuarial accounting valuation. 
 
The June 30, 2020 and 2019 total pension liability was based on the following actuarial methods and 
assumptions: 
 
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal in accordance with the requirements of 

GASB Statement No. 68
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount rate 2020 7.15%
2019 7.15%

Inflation 2020 2.50%
2019 2.50%

Salary increases Varies by entry age and service
Investment rate of 

return 2020 7% net of pension plan investment expenses,
including inflation

2019 7.15% net of pension plan investment expenses,
including inflation

Mortality rate table1 Derived using CalPERS' membership data for all funds

Post-retirement benefit increase Contract COLA up to 2.50% until Purchasing Power
Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies

1The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The table includes 15 years of 
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of scale MP 2016. For more details on this 
table, please refer to the December 2017 experience study report (based on CalPERS demographic data 
from 1997 to 2015) that can be found on the CalPERS website.  
 
All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 and 2019 valuations were based on the results 
of an actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2015, including updates to salary increase, 
mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study report can be obtained at CalPERS' website under 
Forms and Publications. 
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NOTE 7 - PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability at June 30, 2020 and 2019 for was 7.15%. 
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan 
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers 
will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of cur-
rent plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.  
 
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building­ 
block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan invest-
ment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS considered both short-term and long-term 
market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund (Public Employees' Retirement Fund) 
cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected compound (geometric) re-
turns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-
block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value 
of benefits was calculated. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent ex-
pected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using 
both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single 
equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses. 
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NOTE 7 - PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. 
 
 New Strategic Real Return Real Return Real Return Real Return

Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10¹ 11+² Years 1-10¹ 11+²
2020 2019 2020 2020 2019 2019

Global equity 50.00% 50.00% 4.80% 5.98% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed income 28.00% 28.00% 1.00% 2.62% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation sensitive assets 0.00% 0.00% 0.77% 1.81% 0.77% 1.81%
Private equity 8.00% 8.00% 6.30% 7.23% 6.30% 7.23%
Real estate 13.00% 13.00% 3.75% 4.93% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.00% 1.00% 0.00% -0.92% 0.00% -0.92%

Total 100.00% 100.00%

1 An expected inflation of 2.00 percent used for this period
2 An expected inflation of 2.92 percent used for this period  
 
(c) Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the Agency's proportionate share of the collective net pension liability of the plan 
as of the measurement date calculated using the current discount rate, as well as what the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1.00 percentage-point lower or 1.00 
percentage-point higher than current discount rate: 
 

Discount Rate Current Discount Rate
-1.0% Discount +1.0%

Measurement Date (6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%)
2020 1,096,229$       558,416$           114,039$           

(6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%)
2019 1,136,203$       627,260$           207,164$            

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Detailed information about each pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
CalPERS financial report. 
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NOTE 7 - PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
(d) Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
For the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Agency recognized pension expense of $224,033 and 
$220,856, respectively. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Agency deferred inflows and outflows of re-
sources related to pensions are as follows: 
 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

2021 2020 2021 2020

Pension contributions subsequent to
measurement date 451,073$  288,162$  -$              -$              

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments 16,589      -                10,966      

Difference between actual and projected
contributions 187,897    140,363    6               680           

Changes in assumptions 29,911      3,983        10,603      
Difference between expected and actual experience 28,776      43,566      3,375        
Change in proportion 6,262        23,932      135,326    107,224    

Total 690,597$  525,934$  139,315$  132,848$   
 
The amounts above are net of outflows and inflows recognized in the pension expense. The $451,073 
and $288,162 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date are recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal years ended 
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 
 
The deferred outflows and inflows of resources, other than contributions subsequent to measurement 
date, will be recognized in future pension expense as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year  
Ending June 30  2021 2020

2021 35,657$          74,986            
2022 35,678            13,058            
2023 20,919            14,663            
2024 7,955              2,217              
2025 -                      -                      

100,209$        104,924$        

Deferred Inflows (Outflows)
of Resources
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NOTE 8 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS 
 
Plan Description 
The Agency offers health care benefits to active and retired employees, as well as their qualified depend-
ents through CalPERS. The CalPERS plan is an agent multiple-employer plan governed by the Public 
Employees' Medical & Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA). Under PEMHCA, health coverage for the employee 
continues into retirement for employees who have reached at least age 50 with a minimum of five years 
of service. Eligible retirees may enroll in any of the plans available through the CalPERS program. The 
Agency pays the entire cost of coverage for the retiree and their dependents. The Agency provided health 
care benefits that continue for the life of the retiree and the spouse. Copies of the CalPERS annual 
financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 "P" Street, Sacramento, Cali-
fornia 95814. 
 
At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 
 

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving 
benefit payments 3         

Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefit
payments -          
Active plan members 4         
Total 7         

Number of 
Covered 

Participants

 
 
Contribution requirements of the Agency are established by Ordinance and may be amended through 
board action to update the original Ordinance. For the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Agency's 
average contribution rate was 7.1 percent and 12.6 percent of covered-employee payroll, respectively. 
Employees are not required to contribute to the plan. 
 
Net OPEB Liability 
The Agency's net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the total OPEB 
liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that 
date. 
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NOTE 8 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued) 
 
Actuarial assumptions: The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2020 and 2019 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measure-
ment, unless otherwise specified: 
 

Inflation 2020 2.75% annually
2019 2.75% annually

Discount rate 2020 6.75%
2019 6.75%
2020 6.75% net of investment expenses

    investments 2019 6.75% net of investment expenses
Healthcare cost trend rates

Pre-Medicare 2020 7.25% for 2021, decreasing to 4.00% for 2076 and later
2019 7.25% for 2021, decreasing to 4.00% for 2076 and later

Medicare 2020 6.30% for 2021, decreasing to 4.00% for 2076 and later
2019 6.30% for 2021, decreasing to 4.00% for 2076 and later

Long-term expected rate of return on 

 
 

Mortality rates were based on the CalPERS experience study, with adjustments for mortality improve-
ments projected with Mortality Improvement Society of Actuaries Scale MP-2019. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 and 2019 valuation were based on the results 
of a CalPERS actuarial experience study for the period 1997-2015. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a build-
ing-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset 
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding ex-
pected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each 
major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
 

Asset Class Component
2020 2019 2020 2019

Equities 59% 59% 4.82% 4.82%
Fixed income 25% 25% 1.47% 1.47%
TIPS 5% 5% 1.29% 1.29%
Commodities 3% 3% 0.84% 0.84%
REITs 8% 8% 3.76% 3.76%

Total 100% 100%

* Policy target effective October 1, 2018.  

 Target 
Allocation * 

Long-Term Expected Real 
Rate of Return

  

DRAFT N
OT F

OR 

DIS
TRIB

UTIO
N

10
-1

4-
21



SAN GORGONIO PASS WATER AGENCY  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2021 and 2020 

 
 

-46- 

NOTE 8 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued) 
 
Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability at June 30, 2021 and 2020 
was 6.75 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
Plan Assets will always exceed benefit payments. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current 
active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan in-
vestments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB 
liability. 
 
Changes in Assumptions 
 
Assumption related to the excise tax on high cost employer-sponsored health coverage was re-
moved. 
 
Changes in the Net OPEB Liability 
 
The changes in the net OPEB liability for the plan for the year ended June 30, 2021 are as follows: 
 

Increase (Decrease)
Total Plan NET
OPEB Fiduciary OPEB

Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balances at June 30, 2020 794,006$   767,611$   26,395$     
Changes for the year:

Service cost 64,873       -                 64,873       
Interest 57,294       -                 57,294       
Assumption changes (16,297)      -                 (16,297)      
Contributions - employer -                 70,211       (70,211)      
Net investment income -                 26,844       (26,844)      
Benefit payments (20,161)      (20,161)      -                 
Administrative expense -                 (426)           426            

Net changes 85,709       76,468       9,241         
Balances at June 30, 2021 879,715$   844,079$   35,636$     
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NOTE 8 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued) 
 
The changes in the net OPEB liability for the plan for the year ended June 30, 2020 are as follows: 
 

Increase (Decrease)
Total Plan NET
OPEB Fiduciary OPEB

Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balances at June 30, 2019 971,839$   723,097$   248,742$   
Changes for the year:

Service cost 73,296       -                 73,296       
Interest 69,685       -                 69,685       
Differences between expected and -                 

actual experience (289,302)    -                 (289,302)    
Contributions - employer (5,992)        25,564       (31,556)      
Net investment income -                 44,669       (44,669)      
Benefit payments (25,520)      (25,520)      -                 
Administrative expense -                 (199)           199            

Net changes (177,833)    44,514       (222,347)    
Balances at June 30, 2020 794,006$   767,611$   26,395$      

 
Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rates: 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Agency, as well as what the Agency's net OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1.00 percentage-point lower or 1.00 
percentage-point higher than the current discount rate: 
 

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)

Net OPEB liability - June 30, 2021 135,776$          35,636$            (48,551)$           

Net OPEB liability - June 30, 2020 119,174$          26,395$            (51,673)$           

Discount Rate
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NOTE 8 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued) 
 
Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates:  
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Agency, as well as what the Agency's net OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1.00 percentage point 
lower or 1.00 percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 
 

1% Decrease Current Trend 1% Increase
(6.25% to 4.0%) (7.25% to 4.0%) (8.25% to 4.0%)

Net OPEB liability - June 30, 2021 (67,511)$           35,636$            158,473$          

Net OPEB liability - June 30, 2020 (66,169)$           26,395$            136,467$          

Healthcare Trend Rate

 
 

OPEB plan fiduciary net position: Detailed information about the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued CalPERS financial report. 
 
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
For the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Agency recognized OPEB benefit of $50,639 and 
OPEB expense of $25,148, respectively. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Agency reported deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
 

2021 2020 2021 2020
Differences between expected and actual

experience -$            -$            66,762$   178,032$ 
Changes and assumptions -              -              10,889     3,687       
Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on OPEB plan
investments 14,104     -              -              11,919     

Employer contributions made 
subsequent to the measurement date 38,788     70,211     -              -              

Total 52,892$   70,211$   77,651$   193,638$ 

Deferred
Inflows of

Resources

Deferred 
Outflows of
Resources
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NOTE 8 - POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued) 
 

The $38,788 and $70,211 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date are recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in 
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Amounts reported as deferred out-
flows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB 
expense as follows: 

 

2021 2020
2021 -                     $    (119,524)
2022  $      (75,864) (74,092)         
2023 1,452            (849)              
2024 5,845            827               
2025 5,020            -                    

(63,547)$       (193,638)$     

 Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) 
of Resources  Fiscal Year Ending 

June 30: 

 
NOTE 9 - RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage to and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These risks are covered by commer-
cial insurance through participation in the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insur-
ance Authority. See Note 6. The insurance purchased is for liability, property and workers' compensation 
insurance and there are various self-insured retention levels, similar to a deductible, per occurrence. 
 
NOTE 10 - CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS 
 
The Agency has entered into various contractual agreements for engineering, construction, and consult-
ing services. As of June 30, 2021, the remaining contractual commitment for geologic studies and moni-
toring is $113,923, none for construction service, and for various other agreements is $497,153. As of 
June 30, 2020, the remaining contractual commitment for geologic studies and monitoring is $251,455, 
for construction service is $97,168, and for various other agreements is $932,513. These commitments 
have not been recorded in the accompanying financial statements. 
 
NOTE 11 - RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES 
 
COVID-19 
As a result of the spread of the COVID-19 coronavirus, economic risks and uncertainties have arisen 
which could negatively impact the Agency’s operations and its financial results. However, management 
does not anticipate any negative impact at this time. 
 
NOTE 12 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 14, 2021, the date the financial state-
ments were available to be issued. No events occurred through this date requiring disclosure.
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Schedule of Agency Contributions – CalPERS Pension Cost Sharing Plan 
 For the last ten fiscal years1 

 
2021 2021 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarially determined contribution 151,073$  138,162$  121,289$  105,338$  95,564$    109,010$  112,491$  

Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution (451,073)   (288,162)   (321,289)   (105,338)   (95,564)     (109,010)   (112,491)   

Contribution deficiency (excess) (300,000)$ (150,000)$ (200,000)$ -$             -$             -$             -$             

Covered payroll 541,807$  545,993$  522,545$  505,149$  478,062$  461,852$  425,739$  

Contributions as a percentage of 

covered payroll 83.25% 52.78% 61.49% 20.85% 19.99% 23.60% 26.42%

1Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable. Additional years will be added as they 
become available in the future.  

 

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios 
 For the last ten fiscal years1 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Measurement Date 6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2014
Proportion of the collective net pension liability 0.00513% 0.00612% 0.00784% 0.00778% 0.00754% 0.00715% 0.01065%
Proportionate share of the collective 

net pension liability 558,416$ 627,260$ 755,595$ 771,494$ 652,703$ 490,726$ 662,864$ 
Covered-employee payroll 545,993  522,545  505,149  478,062  461,852  425,739  407,378  
Proportionate share of the net pension liability 

as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 102.28% 120.04% 149.58% 161.38% 141.32% 115.26% 162.71%
Proportionate share of the fiduciary net position 

as a percentage of the plan's total pension liabilit 75.10% 75.26% 75.26% 73.31% 74.06% 78.04% 75.86%

1 Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 68 is applicable. Additional years will be added 
as they become available in the future.  DRAFT N
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Schedule of Changes in the Agency's Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
 For the last ten fiscal years1 

 

Measurement Period Ending* 2020 2019 2018 2017

Changes in total OPEB liability

Service cost 64,873$    73,296$    71,161$    69,088$    

Interest 57,294      69,685      62,344      55,712      

Difference between expected and

actual experience -               (289,302)   -               -               

Changes of assumptions (16,297)     (5,992)      -               -               

Changes of benefit terms -               -               -               -               

Benefit payments including refunds** (20,161)     (25,520)     (28,262)     (28,972)     

Net changes 85,709      (177,833)   105,243    95,828      
Total OPEB liability (beginning) 794,006    971,839    866,596    770,768    

Total OPEB liability (ending) 879,715$  794,006$  971,839$  866,596$  

Changes in plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer** 70,211$    25,564$    7,315$      6,512$      

Contributions - employee -           -               -               -               

Net investment income 26,844      44,669      54,942      68,257      

Benefit payments including refunds** (20,161)     (25,520)     (28,262)     (28,972)     
Administrative expense (426)         (199)         (1,281)      (345)         

Net changes 76,468      44,514      32,714      45,452      
Plan fiduciary net position (beginning) 767,611    723,097    690,383    644,931    
Plan fiduciary net position (ending) 844,079$  767,611$  723,097$  690,383$  

Net OPEB liability (ending) 35,636$    26,395$    248,742$  176,213$  
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 

the total OPEB liability 95.9% 96.7% 74.4% 79.7%
Covered payroll 555,060$  530,033$  512,238$  485,156$  
Net pension liability as 

a percentage of covered payroll 6.4% 5.0% 48.6% 36.3%

* For the 12-month period ending on June 30 (measurement date)

**

1 Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Additional years will be added as they 
become available in the future.

Includes implied subsidy benefit payments 
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Schedule of Agency Contributions – OPEB Liability 
 For the last ten fiscal years1 

 

2021 2020 2019 2018
Actuarially determined contribution (ADC) 71,584$       69,448$       91,647$       88,920$        

Contributions in relation to the
 actuarially determined contribution 38,788        70,211        25,564        7,315            

Contribution deficiency/(excess) 32,796$       (763)$          66,083$       81,605$        

Covered payroll* 544,138$     555,060$     530,033$     512,238$      

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 7.1% 12.6% 4.8% 1.4%

* For the 12-month period ending on the preceding June 30th fiscal year-end
1

Notes to Schedule

Valuation date

Methods and assumption used to determine contribution rates

Actuarial cost method Entry age, level percentage of payroll

Amortization method and period Level dollar amount over closed 18-year period

Asset valuation method Market value, no smoothing

Inflation 2.75%
Investment rate of return 6.75%
Healthcare cost trend rates

Pre-Medicare 7.25% for 2021, decreasing to 4.00% for 2076 and later
Medicare 6.30% for 2021, decreasing to 4.00% for 2076 and later

Mortality, Disability, Termination, Retirement
Retirement CalPERS 1997-2015 Experience Study
Mortality Improvement

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal 
year in which contributions are reported.

Historical information is required only for measurement periods for 
which GASB 75 is applicable. Additional years will be added as they 

Mortality projected with Mortality Improvement Society of Actuaries Scale MP-
2019  
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Organization and Description of the Agency 
 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (the "Agency") was formed in 1961 by the Legislature of the State of 
California through the enactment of special legislation. The Agency was formed for the purpose of im-
porting water by contracting for participation in the State Water Project of the State Department of Water 
Resources and for any other activities authorized by the Legislature as proper for the Agency to conduct. 
The Agency's contract for water provides for delivery of up to 17,300 acre feet of water per year, effective 
January 1, 2008. 
 
The Agency is committed to pay its proportionate share of the capital and other costs of the State Water 
Project, including the capital costs in connection with both the transportation facilities and the conserva-
tion facilities, the operation and maintenance costs in connection therewith, and the variable costs inci-
dent to the actual delivery of water. Annually, the State Department of Water Resources issues a bulletin 
known as the 132 Series in which the capital and operating costs are estimated for the life of the project. 
On June 30 of each year, they bill for the costs to be paid during the next succeeding calendar year. The 
capital costs are being capitalized as utility plant while the other costs are charged to operations. The 
capital costs are being amortized on a unit rate based on water deliveries projected over the life of the 
State Water Project to the year 2035. 
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Officers, Directors, and Senior Management 
 
The officers, directors, and senior management of the Agency are listed below: 
 
 Term Expires 
  
Steve Lehtonen, President December 2022  
  
Larry Smith, Vice President December 2024 
  
Blair Ball, Director December 2022 

 
Ron Duncan, Director December 2024 

 
Chander P. Letulle, Director December 2024 
  
Robert Ybarra, Director December 2022 
  
Mickey Valdivia, Treasurer December 2024 
  
Lance Eckhart, General Manager and Secretary of the Board                           N/A 
 
 
Insurance Coverage 
 
The agreement with the Joint Powers Insurance Authority (JPIA) is for liability, property, and workers' 
compensation insurance. 
 
For liability coverage, the first $2,000,000 of basic coverage is pooled self-insured coverage. For cover-
age in excess of $2,000,000, the JPIA has a number of excess liability policies and insures the Agency 
for the $2,000,000 base through $60,000,000. 
 
For property coverage, there is a $1,000 deductible for buildings, fixed equipment and personal property, 
and a $500 deductible for vehicles. 
 
 

DRAFT N
OT F

OR 

DIS
TRIB

UTIO
N 1

0-
14

-2
1



 

-56- 

 
 
 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FI-
NANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOV-

ERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

To the Board of Directors and Management 
San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 
Beaumont, California 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally ac-
cepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to finan-
cial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comp-
troller General of the United States, the financial statements of San Gorgonio 
Pass Water Agency (the Agency), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the Agency’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated October 14, 2021.  

Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 
the Agency’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a ba-
sis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s in-
ternal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Agency’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a 
timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficien-
cies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a mate-
rial misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a defi-
ciency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficien-
cies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant defi-
ciencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any defi-
ciencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. How-
ever, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters  

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Agency’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report  

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Gov-
ernment Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 

 

Riverside, California 
October 14, 2021 
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